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Fitchburg State University
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Date and Time
Wednesday April 27, 2022 at 3:00 PM EDT

Location
This meeting will be held remotely.

The Fitchburg State University Board of Trustees Finance and Administration Committee
will meet on Wednesday, April 27 at 3:00 p.m. This meeting will be held via
teleconference as approved by Governor Baker.

For public viewing:

Live stream
stream.meet.google.com/stream/e0fc4bf5-9f99-4542-9e5f-fc2383f3b9ab

Agenda

l. Opening Items 3:00 PM

Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests
B. Call the Meeting to Order 1m

Il. Presentation by O'Connor & Drew P.C. 3:01 PM

Finance and Administration

A. Proposal submitted by O'Connor & Drew P.C. FYI 25m
B. Discussion Discuss 20m
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Purpose Presenter Time

lll. Closing Items 3:46 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting Vote
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Certified Public Accountants
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Our higher education practice is one of the Firm’s major niches and is comprised of a large group of highly trained
accounting professionals who service more than 50 public and private institutions and related entities and
associations. Our team is well versed in the numerous complexities of the industry, offering detailed accounting advice
catered to the institutions’ unique needs and financial objectives. Each of the individuals assigned to Fitchburg State
University engagement will have significant experience within the higher education industry.

We are aware that although institutions have numerous similarities, each one has its own unique short-term and
long-term objectives. At O’Connor & Drew, P.C., we cater directly to these needs and objectives and partner with each
institution to help to meet their financial goals, protect their interests, and provide strategic advice along the way. Our
higher education practice is proud to offer a comprehensive service portfolio to our clients. The portfolio framework
consists of the following service categories: Audit, Compliance, Tax, IT Audit, Business Consulting, and Employee
Benefits.
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Established in 1949, O'Connor & Drew, P.C. is one of the most well-respected regional accounting Firms in New
England. A full-service Firm that thrives on close business and individual client relationships, O'Connor & Drew, P.C. is
truly committed to providing clients with proactive and responsive financial advice based on their individual needs and
overall business goals. We have two office locations that are located in Braintree and Winchester in Massachusetts.
Our corporate office in Braintree would be the primary office that would be servicing Fitchburg State University . The
firm is financially strong and we are willing to respond to any questions regarding its financial strength and stability.

£
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The following addresses the requirements cited under the General Requirements Section 2.1 "Required Information” of
the Request for Proposal.

«  O'Connor and Drew, P.C. is licensed for public practice as a Certified Public Accounting Firm. We have attached a
copy of the Firm’s License within the Appendix of this proposal.

»  We confirm that the firm will conduct the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

«  O'Connor and Drew, P.C. has a peer review every third year. We have attached a copy of our most recent peer
review report within the appendix of our proposal. Please note that we did not have a letter of comment and that
the reviewing firm selected a number of higher education audit engagements as part of their sample to review.

*  We have extensive experience and knowledge of Massachusetts State Finance Laws as well as Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Audit Rules and Regulations due to the volume of work we perform within the Commonwealth.
We currently audit 22 of the 24 State Universities and Community Colleges within the System. We have also
established a great long-term working relationship with the state comptroller’s office as a result of experience
with the public higher education system.

*  We have disclosed a listing of the firm’s higher educational clients along with related entities within "Client
Listing” section of this proposal.

»  We have contracted with two new higher educational clients during the past two years {Fisher College and
Framingham State University).

Over the past seven years, several institutions have left the firm (Salem State University, Mass Bay Community
College) via a competitive bid process but have since rejoined the firm as clients once again.

+  Please refer to the Appendix for resumes of all senior individuals who will be assigned to the engagements.
+  We have completed the section referred to as "Statement of Qualifications”. (Appendix A)

¢ We have included, under a separate cover, a pricing proposal along with respective billing hourly rates for
additional work that may be requested by the individual institutions (Appendix C).

«  Billing hourly rates are included in the pricing proposal (Appendix C)
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O’Connor & Drew, P.C. prides itself on its rich history of providing our growing clientele with exceptional service.
This is a direct result of the fact that our employees believe in what our Firm stands for and truly want to not only
meet client expectations but to exceed them. Although as a Firm we have numerous similarities, we know that our
differences are equally important. We are proud to promote a workplace culture that celebrates our uniqueness as
individuals and views our employees as our greatest asset; rewarding them for their high-quality work.

Our Firm is dedicated to facilitating a strong team culture. Staff members at all levels have close interaction with
coworkers, partners, and clients alike. O'Connor & Drew’s leadership team understands that communication is key —
both with the entire engagement team as well as with the clients that we serve. When the lines of communication are
open, employees at every level can feel confident in sharing in each other’s successes as well as using their voices if any

issues arise that need to be worked through.

«  CEOAction Pledge
Change comes from the top! OCD CEO, Mark Dow,
& P @NERSBTY & e

signed the CEO Action Pledge for Diversity & Inclusion
in February 2020. The pledge is the largest CEO driven
business commitment to advance diversity and inclusion
in the workplace.

o Diversity and Inclusion and Unconscious Bias Training
Key Management is engaged in in-depth and continuous
training in the area of Diversity and Inclusion. Providing
this type of ongoing training to senior-level staff solidifies
our commitment to equality and empowerment at all
levels of the firm. Unconscious bias training is offered
firm-wide.

°  Recruitment
OCD is executing strategies to attract candidates from
diverse backgrounds. Currently, OCD has strong female ,
representation with women making up over 40% of the Y5, . \
firm overall; many of whom are in key roles. Aig NOIS‘T@%

e Participation :
Participation in the AICPA Diverse Student Internship Program

Partners and staff members are actively involved in national and local professional organizations specific to their areas
of industry expertise and service lines including:

* American Institute of Certified Public Accountants » Eastern Association of College and University Business Officers

« Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants  New England Commission of Higher Education
» Association of Independent Colleges 8 Universities in Massachusetts - South Shore Chamber of Commerce
« National Association of College and University Business Officers

. Certified Public Accoan ants
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Our accounting and auditing staff consist of well trained professionals with significant experience auditing institutions
of higher education. The Firm has been very fortunate to experience low turnover within the department which
contributes to staff continuity on the engagements and increased efficiencies. Each engagement is supervised by

an audit principal and audit manager and each is well versed within the specific industry assigned. The staff works

in unison with our quality control department to ensure that we adhere to our professional standards. Some of the
typical services provided by the accounting and audit department include the following:

Audits of Financial Statements;

Performance and reporting on Single Audit engagements;
Massachusetts Office of Student Financial Aid Examinations;
Agreed upon procedure engagements;

Review and compilation engagements;

Perkins Loan Termination engagements;

Financial projections;

NCAA Reporting.

Tax Services

Since our inception, the Firm has emphasized the importance of timely tax planning, as well as assisting clients with
the critical task of tax compliance. The Firm maintains a dedicated tax department. The professionals in this
department maintain a wide breadth of expertise on both technical and industry-specific tax issues. The department
has members with Master’s Degrees in Taxation, Certified Valuation Credentials and Law Degrees.

The staff who are engaged in the field generally prepare the corporate tax returns. This provides continuity and
efficiency on this important task. Our tax department then performs a quality control review on the return, which
consists of the following:

Resolution of technical matters

Review for proper classification on the return

Review of industry specific issues

Review for proper tax elections

Review of pertinent disclosures

Review of possible tax credits and other tax deductions

If your Institution becomes the subject of a governmental audit, we will function as your representative. We have
successfully defended various Internal Revenue Service challenges. We also have represented organizations in state
income, sales, and use tax examinations.

Our Firm was at the forefront defending a number of our institutional clients that were subject to the initial 1098-T
penalties assessments prior to the IRS granting relief to the higher educational industry. Our tax professionals spend
significant time reviewing and researching changes in tax policy and revisions to federal and state tax laws throughout
the year. Our tax department routinely addresses questions from our higher education portfolio and responds
immediately to all inquiries. We have several dedicated individuals within our tax department that are available to
address any industry specific questions related to higher education.

Powered by BoardOnTrack




Fitchburg State University - Board of Trustees Finance & Administration Committee Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday April 27, 2022 at 3:00 PM

-We currently audit approximately sixty employee benefit plans, including both defined con-
tribution and defined benefit plans. These audits range from plans with 100 to 7,000 participants and assets up to
$735,000,000. Included in these employee benefits plans are eleven 403(b) plan audits, including six higher education
institutions. Our largest 403(b) plan has approximately 1,100 participants and assets of approximately $180,000,000.
The Department of Labor (DOL} during 2019 selected one of our audit engagements as part of their plan to ensure
audit quality and had no findings.

~ es — In addition to the testing of IT controls during the course of the regular audit
engagement O’Connor and Drew, P.C. also has an IT Audit & Security Department that has the capability to perform
the following services:

G - — Technology is key to supporting an entity’s business processes. O'Connor and
Drew P.C. can review the policies, procedures, and activities that contribute to an institution’s controls. These
can include infrastructure configuration, change and patch management, virus and malware coverage, and user
account security.

e - Institutions depend on internal and external IT service providers to keep systems
running. O'Connor 8 Drew, P.C. can provide an independent review and provide an assessment of internal and
external relationships such as measuring risk associated with Wi-Fi security, data security, backup restoration,
and whether the institution is receiving the services it is paying for.

Threat ~ s —Threats come from multiple sources: the insider employee and the
out5|der agents via the Internet All software and hardware have inherent vulnerabilities. O’Connor & Drew,
P.C. can test your security posture and provide you with the details needed to make appropriate decisions to
mitigate risk and decrease exposure to these threats.

7 - Not to be confused with regular vulnerability testing, penetration testing is the active

testing to valldate IT infrastructure and applications are working as designed. Penetration testers will try to
exploit vulnerabilities in operating systems, databases, networks, and applications to find problems and exploit
those problems. O’Connor & Drew, P.C. penetration testers have experience in performing penetration testing
which includes not only the IT, but physical protections as well. Have you considered what happens when
someone leaves the back door ajar (even just for a minute), or a well-intentioned receptionist who provides
just a little bit too much information to an unknown caller? O’Connor & Drew, P.C. will review these areas as

well.

a, r —When you have a staffing shortage or require specialized skills, on-boarding new staff or
retammg mfrequently used skills may not be efficient or cost effective. Co-sourcing your IT Audit staff
stabilizes your employee overhead costs and allows you to focus on the more important task of translating
observations into business risk. O'Connor & Drew , P.C. can perform the hands-on testing of controls with our
staff certified in a wide range of technologies.
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The Firm is dedicated to quality control. The accounting and auditing work, professional procedures, staff qualifications
and continuing education requirements have been examined under the Peer Review program of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). O’Connor & Drew was one of the first Firms to participate in this program,
beginning in 1978. With fourteen successfully completed reviews, the Firm is one of only a few to achieve this standing
nationally. Our most recent peer review is included in the appendix. Our peer review did not produce a letter of
comments. Please note that the peer review team selected a number of governmental and not-for-profit entities
which had a Single Audit component as part of the engagement. We recently underwent our fifteenth peer review and
are awaiting the acceptance letter from the Massachusetts Board of Public Accountancy.

The Firm is also a member of the Government Audit Quality Center (GAQC) and the Employee Benefit Plan Audit
Quality Center (EBPAQC). The Firm is also a member of the AICPA's G400 Group which identifies the largest 500 CPA
Firms across the United States.

Firm members regularly attend accounting and auditing educational seminars to stay abreast of all relevant
pronouncements regarding accounting standards and their relevant application. Principals and staff regularly attend
the AICPA not-for-profit and government annual conferences, student financial aid training programs, and the
employee benefit plan annual conference.

The Firm has experienced professionals in its Quality Control Department. The department performs an annual
inspection of a broad range of industries for audit, review, and compilation engagements. The department always
selects a number of higher educational institutions and Single Audit engagements as part of their respective sample.
Each fall the department conducts a Firm-wide annual auditing and accounting conference to convey the results of the
inspection process and to offer suggestions/recommendations for improvements for subsequent engagements.

Every financial statement issued by the Firm is required to be reviewed by our Quality Control Department prior to it
being released in draft form. The Quality Control Department reviews the financial statements to ensure that the Firm
has adhered to our professional standards. They also are a resource to our staff as well as our clients in assisting with
complex accounting transactions and issues.

. .. Technical Review staft Issue Draft /
Preparation of Financial by OC / Tax Communicates Abbicve and
Statements / Tax Returns Y All.Changes PR 9¥¢
Department to Client Finalize
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The Firm presents a number of seminars during the year and our clients are always welcome to attend. Generally,

we present on a number of topics which range from general accounting and auditing practices/procedures and
implementation of new accounting pronouncements to current income tax updates. We also conduct student financial
aid seminars and various yellow book workshops as well as an ethics seminar for staff and clients.

O'Connor and Drew, P.C. also presents timely topics on a frequent basis to a number of our institutional clients. We
present at least twice a year to the State University and Community College System in Massachusetts on an array

of topics. Presentation topics in the past have included Clery Act compliance, a summarization of frequent Single
Audit findings, implementation guidance on new accounting pronouncements, IT Risk alerts, and 1098-T compliance.
We also calculate various benchmark ratio analyses for our client base individually as well as a comparison among
institutions.

Due to the significance of the Firm'’s higher education practice, all of our staff are trained in performing Single Audits,
with a specialization towards student financial aid programs and federal grant compliance. We send two to three staff
annually to a three-day student financial aid conference to ensure that we are up to date with the relevant compliance
standards. Subsequent to the staff attending this seminar, an additional seminar is presented by these individuals to
the entire Firm. We believe that everyone involved in the audits of our institutional clients should be well versed with
the Single Audit standards as we utilize the same team for the financial statement and Single Audit components of the
audit engagement.

by 5

We believe that we are a proactive Firm communicating any new and/or evolving accounting and tax issues. Footnote
disclosures generally discuss new accounting pronouncements that will be considered in future reporting periods.
These new pronouncements are also included within our presentation of our required communications to the Board of
Trustees. We anticipate assisting our clients in the near future in the implementation of GASB 87 related to leases.
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O’Connor and Drew, P.C. (OCD) uses the Microsoft Office 365 suite of products and Citrix SharefFile to secure client
information transferred via the internet or email. File transfers between our clients and the Firm are transmitted via
Citrix ShareFile. All communication transmissions to Citrix ShareFile across the internet are encrypted by SSL/TLS
connections. These are the same encryption protocols and algorithms used by e-commerce services and online banking
institutions. Emails sent from OCD to clients are scanned for viruses, malware, and personally sensitive information.
Through Office 365 Message Encryption (OME) and/or Citrix ShareFile, emails are encrypted in transit to people
outside of our organization, regardless of the destination email address (e.g. Gmail, Outlook, Client Company). To view
these encrypted emails, recipients can either get a one-time passcode or sign in with either a Citrix ShareFile account
or an Office 365 account. The email messages are also encrypted using SSL/TLS connections and SSL connections when
viewed via a web browser. Here, users are required to acknowledge a phone call, text message, or app notification on
their smart phones after correctly entering their passwords before viewing. They can sign in only after this second
authentication factor has been satisfied.
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We will assign several principals and managers to supervise the various engagements. They will ensure the timely
completion of all services that are provided for you. At any time during the year, you can feel at liberty to contact
any assigned staff member. By committing several senior personnel to your engagement, we believe that you

will receive our highest level of service and we will be a significant resource for accounting, tax, and operational
matters. Along with the individuals used for fieldwork, a tax individual will also be assigned to your engagement.
This individual will review all aspects of the case surrounding taxes to ensure compliance with the law as well as the
most advantageous tax strategies are utilized when necessary.

PRINCIPAL

David directs O’Connor & Drew’s government, educational, and non-profit services area and has a wealth of experience in
the financial audits of governments and institutions of higher education. David is a certified government financial manager
(CGFM) and he received the Governmental Accounting and Auditing Certificate of Educational achievement for performing
Single Audits. David oversees the higher education practice within the Firm which includes over 40 institutions throughout
New England.

CPA, MBA, CGFM

' Certified Public Accountants
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CPA
PRINCIPAL

Zach joinedthe firm in 2007 and was promoted to
Managerin 2017 and most recently to Principal in
2022. He oversees accounting, auditing, and tax
services for a wide range of clients and variety of
engagements including; audits, reviews, compila-
tions and agreed upon procedures.

CISA, CRISC, CISSP
PRINCIPAL - IT AUDIT
Michael is Director of IT Audit and Security with
the Firm. Joining in 2012, Michael was previously
with State Street Corporation for fifteen years.
Michael has twenty years of extensive IT expertise
in various disciplines, including server, network,
and storage technology control design and
testing. Michael graduated from the University
of Massachusetts with a BA in Community Studies
and is a veteran of the United States Air Force.

CPA

MANAGER

Mike joined the firm in 2008 and was promoted

to Manager in 2017. Mike is responsible for
managing audit and tax services for a wide variety
of clients including closely held businesses and their
shareholders, as well as non-profit, higher education
and governmental entities.

CPA, MST

PRINCIPAL - TAX

Lauren is a Tax Principal of O'Connor & Drew, P.C. Ms.
Carnes graduated from University of New Hampshire
with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and from Bentley
University with a Master of Science in Taxation. She
Joined the Firm in 1988 and became a principal and
manager of the tax department in 1997. She has
extensive experience with corporate and individual
tax planning, financial planning and in dealings with
government agencies, and is a Fellow of the
Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants,
a member of Nexia International, South Shore
Chamber of Commerce and Bentley University’s
Women's Chapter Alumnae.

We will also assign staff that have relevant College/University experience at levels below the manager level.

Powered by BoardOnTrack:

CPA,CGFM
PRINCIPAL - QUALITY CONTROL

steven is in charge of Quality Control at
O’Connor & Drew, P.C. He is also a Principal
in the Accounting and Auditing Department
specializing in the audits of higher education,
government entities, not-for-profit
organizations and automobile dealerships.
Steven'’s responsibilities include the review of
all financial statements and assurance reports
that are issued by the Firm.

" CPACIA, CFE

PRINCIPAL

Frank is the Internal Audit Principal for the Firm. A
graduate of Villanova University, Frank joined the Firm
in 1998 and has worked both with non-profits and
closely held businesses. Under Mr. O'Brien’s
supervision, the Firm has performed agreed-upon
procedures relating to Clery compliance, presented on
Clery for the Massachusetts Comptrollers and CFO’s
and AICUM, written several articles pertaining to the
Clery Act, and has performed forensic investigations at
State Universities. Frank is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow of
the Massachusetts Society of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Institute of Internal
Auditors and Association of Certified Fraud Examiners.
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At O’Connor & Drew, our objective is to optimize your profitability, manage your risk, help you comply with state
and federal laws, and give you peace of mind. We accomplish this through creative and innovative service offerings
that enable you to better realize your financial goals.

We hire our staff with the objective of maintaining a low turnover rate. We recruit from the top business schools in
the area and generally hire individuals who graduated with honors in accounting. Our philosophy is to attract and
retain outstanding individuals. We do not hire in excess of our needs and avoid the practice of hiring and firing. With
this philosophy, our Firm has avoided significant turnover. If the Firm should experience any turnover within the
staffing of your engagement, the partner and manager will ensure that you will not have any disruption in services.

We require all staff to participate in continuing professional education programs. Each staff person assigned to the
engagement will have the continuing education credits necessary to perform an audit in accordance with Govern-
ment Auditing Standards. Our staff is trained under a myriad of programs which include courses sponsored by the
Massachusetts Society of CPAs, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the National Association of
College and University Business Officers (NACUBO) and the Eastern Association of College and Business Officers
(EACUBO) and various other organizations. We also host an annual auditing and accounting conference which all
employees are required to attend. Lastly, due to our significant expertise within the higher education industry, we
also send a number of our staff annually to the Student Financial Aid (SFA) Audit Seminar.

Each staff person assigned to the engagement will be trained to perform Single Audits; specifically in auditing fed-
eral / state student financial aid programs and research grants / contracts. Each one of our higher education clients
requires a Single Audit so we consider ourselves to be experts in this area.

We understand the concerns of our clients in regard to staff continuity. O'Connor and Drew, P.C. does not have an
internal policy in regard to partner or manager client rotation. Our goal is to maintain, at a minimum, the same
staffing at the principal and manager level unless there is a request by the client to change personnel. In that case,
O'Connor & Drew, P.C. has a number of other resources within the Firm familiar with the educational and
not-for-profit industry who would have the ability to resume the services at little or no significant interruption.

If any individuals who are assigned to the engagement leave the Firm, you will be notified and introduced to the new
in-charge of the engagement immediately. With the quality control system we have in place, we are confident that
we comply with professional standards in this area.

ts
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We believe that communication throughout the year between the auditing Firm and the Institution is key to a timely
and efficient audit engagement. The level of communication includes meeting with the BOT Finance Committee
and the Board of Trustees and/or the management of Fitchburg State University prior to the commencement of the
interim work to discuss the scope of the engagement and to discuss any new risks/concerns and to review any new
accounting pronouncements that may affect the audit engagement.

We also believe that continuous communication during the course of the audit engagement whether it be weekly
meetings, or periodic updates of progress through status reports, is beneficial towards meeting the deadlines as well
as avoiding any unnecessary surprises. Our goal is to keep management abreast of any areas of concern which may
impede the progress of the engagement.

All audit work will be substantially completed prior to leaving the field and will be reviewed by the manager. In
addition, an exit conference will be scheduled with management prior to leaving the field ( or once the work is com-
pleted in the case of working remotely) to discuss the results of the engagement as well as communicating any open
items.

Lastly, we meet with the BOT Finance Committee and/or the Board of Trustees to deliver the results of the audit
engagement. This includes reviewing the financial statements, the management letter, which identifies any mate-
rial weaknesses, significant deficiencies and other matters along with recommendations for improvements as well
our required auditor communications as dictated by our professional standards. Our overall responsibility is to the
boards of the respective institutions, and, to convey the results of the engagement to them. At this year-end meet-
ing we generally discuss within our required communications any new pronouncements which would affect the
following year’s engagement. We believe that we are very proactive as a Firm in communicating any new pronounce-
ments that may affect the individual institution.

We encourage constant communication throughout the year with our client base. We believe that we are business
partners with our clients and there are significant benefits to keeping us involved with any changes that may occur
outside the course of the audit. We do not charge our clients for these routine calls as we believe this is an invest-
ment of our time to produce a more efficient audit engagement.

O’Connor and Drew, P.C. has several mailings which are sent to each of our clients. One of the mailings is specific to
the higher education industry. The second is more general in nature and applies to our entire client base. We have
also implemented "constant contact” which gives us the opportunity to mass email to specific clients/industries of
any newsworthy issues pertaining to new IRS regulations, HR policies, record safeguard issues, and a variety of other
related topics.

rewr

Crtified Public Accountants
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Base Price Deliverables - Fitchburg State University

We will perform an annual audit of the financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We will also conduct a compliance audit of federal
awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance (formerly known as OMB Circular A-133).

The annual financial audit will cover the fiscal years ending June 30, 2023 through 2025 and will be presented on a
comparative basis and in accordance with standards established by Governmental Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board.

Each Institution will be accounted for as a business activity and the financial statements will consist of the following:
¢ Management's Discussion and Analysis {(Unaudited)
*  Independent Auditor's Report
«  Consolidated Statement(s) of Net Position (primary and component units)
»  Consolidated Statement( s) of Revenues and Expenses (primary and component units)
«  Consolidated Statement(s) of Cash Flows
> Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (primary and component units)
»  Supplemental information:
* Independent Auditor's Report on Supplemental Information
< Residence Hall Fund and Residence Hall Damage Fund Activity Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Revenues and Expenses (Required for State Universities)
»  Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
> Any other required reporting now or in the future.

The financial statements will comprise its discretely presented component unit.

We will provide any necessary and appropriate support related to GASB pronouncements and/or State Comptroller
guidelines in the preparation of the above mentioned financial statements.

We will provide a comprehensive management letter to the Institution which provides findings and recommendations
relating to the statements, internal controls, accounting systems and other matters which come to our attention
during the course of the audit engagement if deemed necessary.

We will provide ongoing support to the Institutions in connection with new as well as evolving accounting issues. An
issue that will impact the Institutions significantly in the near future is accounting for long term leases.

We will attend meetings to review draft financial statements and management letters with the personnel of the
Institution as well as the BOT Finance Committee and the Board of Trustees. These meetings will include briefings
related to implementation of new accounting pronouncements, directives from the State Controller’s Office as
well as the review of our required communications. We will also meet with the BOT Finance Committee prior to
the commencement of fieldwork for each engagement year to discuss the audit approach and address any areas of
potential concerns.
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The annual audit services include the printing and binding of copies of the audited financial statements and related
footnotes and the management letter, if issued. The Uniform Guidance reports will also be printed and bound. We
will also be responsible for submission of the aforementioned reports to the State Comptroller’s Office, the State
Auditors Office as well as the Department of Higher Education.

We will assist in the preparation and submission of the Data Collection Form to the National Clearinghouse in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance reporting requirements.

We will provide assistance with the financial information relevant to the Comptroller’s Office for their preparation of
its annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. -

We will provide general advice, as requested periodically, by the board of trustees, related committees and/or
management. We will also provide technical advice regarding business compliance and regulatory issues as they arise.
We will be available during the period of this agreement for general consultations.

Base Price Deliverables-Component Units (Fitchburg State University Foundation, Inc. and FSU Foundation
Supporting Organization, Inc.)

We will perform an annual audit of the financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

The following will be issued for each component unit:
Statements of Financial Position;

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets;
Statements of Cash Flows;

Notes to the Financial Statement;

We will also issue an auditor’s report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

We will provide a comprehensive management letter to the component unit which provides findings and
recommendations relating to the statements, internal controls, accounting systems and other matters which come to

our attention during the course of the audit engagement if deemed necessary.

We will attend meetings to review draft financial statements and management letters with the personnel of the
component unit as well as their respective Board of Directors.

Preparation and submission of the Internal Revenue Service Form 990 and the Massachusetts Form PC.

We will provide ongoing support to the component unit in connection with new as well as evolving accounting
issues,

15
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I

The keys to the successful completion of any engagement is planning and communication. We emphasize planning
in each aspect of our services. We believe that hands-on involvement by the principals and managers assigned to
your engagement is critical to providing first class service. David Dilulis, CPA, and Zachary LaFlash, CPA, (along with
the assigned manager) will coordinate all of our services. They will provide the focal point of our services and ensure
that adequate resources are utilized in completing your engagement.

Our understanding is that the audit will be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted

in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in government auditing
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The audit will include tests of the accounting
records and other auditing procedures as deemed necessary in order to ensure the ability to certify Fitchburg State
University ' financial statements.

Our fieldwork will be coordinated with your accounting staff. To ensure an efficient engagement, your staff will be
given a list of schedules and account analyses to be completed prior to our arrival( at least a month in advance).
Since our staff is knowledgeable and experienced in the industry, the interruptions to your normal operations will
be minimal. A team of experienced accountants, who will have the expertise to serve you effectively and on a timely
basis, will be assigned to your engagement. Any working papers prepared during the course of the engagement will
be retained for a minimum of five years. In addition, all working papers will be made available to Fitchburg State
University upon request.

We pride ourselves at our ability to communicate during the course of the engagement. We focus on constant
interaction with the management of our institutions and set up weekly status meetings to review the progress of the
engagement to date. This serves as a great tool and avoids any unnecessary surprises. During these meetings we also
review any potential management letter issues so to avoid any last-minute surprises.
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The following is a brief description of the significant audit procedures to be performed for the audit of Fitchburg State
University for the year ending June 30, 2023. This preliminary plan is based on our experience with other organizations
similar to yours, Please note that the procedures listed are not intended to be all-inclusive and represent only a por-
tion of procedures to be performed.

»  Conduct a pre-audit conference with the senior financial management team to discuss the
audit approach and any areas of concern.

+  Review of Internal Controls by conducting interviews with key personnel.
«  Review the prior audit and accompanying recommendations.

+  Determine the scope of the audit programs based on our review of Internal Control
and accounting procedures. We will use sampling and other auditing methods deemed

Planning
appropriate. We will also review the general controls over the [T environment as part of our
testing.
¢ At least one month prior to the start of fieldwork, we will provide each institution with a
listing of all information to be accumulated for the audit.
+  Obtain confirmation requests for cash, investments, receivables, bonds and notes payable,
legal representation, insurance, and any other requests that we deem necessary.
+  Obtain confirmations of bank account balances at year-end.
Cash and
Equivalents Review and test reconciliations for reconciling items.
*  Review cutoff at year-end, including transfers between banks.
+  Testing of internal controls over cash receipts and disbursements
Analytically review tuition, fee, room and board revenue through comparison of
revenue to prior periods, budgeted amounts, and formulated expectations to
determine reasonableness of recorded amounts.
Tuition, Fees, «  Evaluation of revenue system controls.
Room, Board ‘
and Other - Compare tuition, fees, room and board revenue per unit to approved fee schedules.
Related «  Assess collectability.

Receivables ) , . .
+  Examine supporting documentation and systems for scholarships, contracts and grants

receivables.

+  Confirm significant receivable balances.
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Student Loans
and Other
Assets

Investments

Capital Assets

Debt

Employee
Compensation
Expenses and
Accrued Payroll

Evaluation of system controls.

Analytical review.
Confirm selected balances.

Assess collectability.

Confirm account balances at year-end.
Evaluate controls of third-party custodians.

Analytical review of investment results.

Agree subsidiary ledgers to amounts recorded on the general ledger.
Review supporting documentation for large purchases and disposals made during the year.

Review large expenses for repairs and maintenance to determine propriety of expense
charge.

Review methods for recording depreciation for consistency and reasonableness.

Review of lease agreements to determine appropriate classification between operating or
capital.

Consider recoverability of assets.

Confirm balances at year-end.
Evaluate compliance with covenants.

Analytically review interest expense.

Analytically review accrual for salary and other salary related costs.

Analytically review expense for salary and salary related costs by comparison with prior
years, budgeted amounts and formulated expectations using such factors as average
number of employees and pay rates.

Review employee termination agreements where applicable.
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¢ Agree accounts payable subsidiary ledger with general ledger.

Other Expenses, +  Examine supporting documentation for significant payable balances at year end.
é\ac;:;:{; t:n d +  Review supporting documentation for significant accrued expenses at year-end.
Accrued +  Perform search for unrecorded liabilities by reviewing disbursements made
Expenses subsequent to year-end.

»  Review for reasonableness the method used for allocating expenses to categories.

»  Analytically review contribution revenue through comparison of revenue to prior years,
budgeted amounts and formulated expectations to determine reasonableness of recorded

Contribution amounts.
Revenue and > Examine supporting documentation for significant contributions to determine if classified
Related correctly. .

Receivables > Review the cutoff for recording all significant contributions at year-end.

»  Confirm significant receivable balances.

»  Assess collectability.

»  Review areas pertinent to the Institution’s retention of tax-exempt status.

Income Taxes .
*  Review areas of potential risk.
Operating > Verify proper classification of balances between net position categories.
Expenses
+  Analytically review comparison of expenses between current and prior year as well as
Statement of budgeted amounts.
Activities .
¢ Analysis of various expense accounts and trace to supporting source documents.
« Determination of compliance requirements that are direct and material to the
Institution.
» Obtain an understanding of and perform tests of the internal controls over
Student Financial compliance.
Aid (Uniform ¢ Test major programs for adherence to direct and material compliance

Guidance) requirements.
«  Agreement of reported federal expenditure amounts to financial statements,
general ledger, program cost centers and grant award agreements.

b Vaﬁl‘ﬁ;
PR i R

Powered by BoardOnTrack



Fitchburg State University - Board of Trustees Finance & Administration Committee Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday April 27, 2022 at 3:00 PM

Proposed Time Frame for the Completion of All Services

Initial Reviewand  Audit Planning Meeting Fieldwork Year-End Client Meeting Delivery of ;

and Testin
£ » Analyze operating results + Meeting with management . «lIssua

+ Meet with management, the and the BOT Finance
BOT Finance Committee, and * Perferm audit of books and Committee, and the Board of

the Board of Trustees records Trustees
« Review books and records * Prepare list of management

advisory comments s Discuss draft financial

« Deliver year-end work paper statements on or before
schedule request to client September 30

personnel
¢ Discuss draft management

« Discuss and schedule dates letter

for fieldwork ;
+ Determine if any changesare

+ Testing of internal controls needed

= Testing of Student Financial
Aid (2023)

Proposed Time Line

Immediately upon : ohos
award of contract April /- May /June 2022 August 2022
We will continue to make a significant investment to deepen our knowledge and understanding of the Massachusetts
State and Community Colleges. This, combined with our quality control standards, will help to ensure that excellent
service is provided to you and the Institutions for many years to come.

We will discuss with you the final year-end results, review proposed adjusting entries with you (if any), and submit to
you a preliminary draft of the financial statements for each entity for your review before issuing the final draft.

In addition, upon completion of the engagement, a management report will be submitted containing our specific
observations and recommendations relating to internal controls, safeguards, accounting practices, policies, systems
and procedures, and such other matters as may come to our attention during the course of our work. This report will
be in addition to our verbal communications with management during the engagement on any issues or observations
noted.

One source of pride of the Firm is to value the deadline dates of our clients. We are committed to meeting the
September 30 deadline date as specified within the request for proposal (providing information from state sources are
received in a timely manner).

Each of the deliverables will be completed timely and will be issued in order to allow sufficient lead time so that
they may be reviewed by management, the BOT Finance Committee, and the Board of Trustees of Fitchburg State
University . o ;
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Berkshire Community College, Berkshire Community College Foundation Inc.

Bristol Community College, Bristol Community College Foundation
Bunker Hill Community College, Bunker Hill Community College Foundation
Cape Cod Community College, Cape Cod Community College Educational Foundation, Inc.
Greenfield Community College
Holyoke Community College
Massasoit Community College, Massasoit Community College Foundation
Mass Bay Community College, Mass Bay Community College Foundation
Middlesex Community College
Mount Wachusett Community College, Mount Wachusett Community College Foundation
Northern Essex Community College, Northern Essex Community College Foundation
North Shore Community College, North Shore Community College Foundation
Quinsigamond Community College, Quinsigamond Community College Foundation
Roxbury Community College, Roxbury Community College Foundation

Springfield Technical Community College, Springfield Technical Community College Foundation

Bridgewater State University, Bridgewater State University Foundation
Framingham State University
Massachusetts College of Art and Design, Massachusetts College of Art and Design Foundation
Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts, Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts Foundation
Massachusetts Maritime Academy, Massachusetts Maritime Academy Foundation
Salem State University, Salem State University Foundation, Salem State University Assistance Corporation

Westfield State University, Westfield State University Foundation
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Community College of Rhode Island
Rhode Istand College

University of Rhode Island

Vermont State College System
< Community College of Vermont
«  Castleton State College
«  Northern Vermont University

*  Vermont Technical College

//”"

-

List of clients lost in the past seven years and the reasons for the discontinuation of work with them:
»  Mass Bay Community College - Competitive bid process; College subsequently returned to the firm as a client.
+  Salem State University - Competitive bid process; University subsequently returned to the firm as a client.
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Boston Architectural College

Bay Path University
Eastern Nazarene College
Baptist College
Fisher College*
Montserrat College of Art, Inc.
American International College
Showa Institute for Learning

Urban College

AICUM, Inc.

New England Association of Schools and Colleges
New England Commission of Higher Education

New England Board of Higher Education

*New client for audit year-ended june 30, 2020
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Our high standards of practice and commitment to client needs, combined with personal attention from dedicated
partners and managers, help us stand apart from other firms. We understand that each industry and each client has
a unique set of issues and concerns, and we offer individualized service that draws on the talent and expertise of the

entire firm.

With over 20 years of service in the higher education sector, you will benefit from our unwavering commitment to this
industry, including: -

o Staff that are trained in the higher education sector that contribute to an efficient audit approach and services

over 40 Colleges and Universities annually;

o« Currently audits twenty-two of the twenty four Massachusetts public institutions, and delivers each audited
statement to the Comptroller's Office, Auditor’s Office and Massachusetts Department of Higher Education’s
Office by October 15th each year without exception;

o Principals and managers that specialize in the higher education sector, and frequently lecture at CFO and Control-
ler meetings organized by the State Universities and Community Colleges. Past topics include GASB 68 and GASB
75 implementation issues; the Uniform Guidance (new A-133), Annual Single Audit Results, 1098-T Compliance,
Clery Act Compliance, IT Risk Concerns, Responsibilities of Board of Trustees, and Benchmark Ratios;

*  Active sponsors of the Association of Independent College and Universities in Massachusetts (AICUM),the New
England Board of Higher Education (NEBHE); and the New England Associations of Schools and Colleges (NEASC);

«  Members of the firm who were acknowledged in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Conversion Guide for GASB
34/35/37 and 39 for Institutions of Higher Education;

*  Principals and staff who regularly attend seminars organized by NACUBO and EACUBO;

o Staff who routinely attend seminars (including specialized student financial aid conferences) that keep them
abreast of new laws and developments in the higher education sector, so we can provide you with the most cur-
rent, insightful, and timely advice, helping you make informed financial decisions that maximize your resources;

»  Our philosophy to treat our clients as business partners with a hands on approach on the specific engagement;
«  Immediate responsiveness to emails and voicemails;

«  Significant visibility of the Principal and Manager on the respective engagement;

< Compliance with regulatory requirements.;

»  Assistance with the application of emerging Government Auditing Standards Pronouncements-key contributor
within the implementation of GASB 68 and GASB 75;

¢ Sound internal control processes;

o+ Excellent client retention thanks to a reputation for quality, responsiveness and a deep understanding of the high-

er education sector;

Certified |
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Excellent relationship with the State Comptroller’s Office which facilitates generating answers to technical ques-

tions;
Timely, concise and accurate financial reporting;
Consistent annual sponsor for the CFO Joint State University and Community College Conferences;

Consistent sponsor of events for each of the State University and Community College Foundations that we cur-

rently service,

O'Connor and Drew, P.C. uses Pro System Engagement (Engagement) to assist in the audits of our clients

The benefits of the software is that it assists us in judging materiality, performing preliminary as well as final ana-
lytical review procedures, preparation of electronic working papers and the ability to access and download client
trial balances which helps to ensure timely and accurate preparation of the Institution’s financial statements. Our
audit programs for each specific area are also linked to the individual component of the audit engagement.

Engagement is licensed for private use by the Firm and is not available directly from O'Connor and Drew, P.C.

Our approach to the audit of automated systems include testing transactions within the receipt and disbursement
modules of the clients system as well as utilizing the State’s HRCMS payroll system. We generally select, based
on our risk assessment of the internal control environment, anywhere between 25 to 40 transactions of each re-
lated system to trace and agree original source documents. The transaction tests include a number of attributes to
examine in order to ensure that the system is functioning as intended. If we encounter errors/findings within the
sample, we make an assessment as to whether or not to increase the sample size in order to maintain our original
risk assessment albeit low, moderate or high.

O'Connor and Drew, P.C. has an Information Technology Department that consists more than 30 individuals. In
addition to the testing of IT controls during the course of the regular audit engagement, the IT Department per-
forms on a routine basis, General IT Controls Review, Service Provider Assurance, Threat and Vulnerability Assess-
ments, Staff Co-Sourcing and Software License Compliance. Any projects over and above the general IT testing
during the course of the audit engagement are considered special projects and a separate engagement letter and
fee arrangement would be negotiated with the respective Institution

owered by Board
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Control risk assessment is a vital part of our review of the internal control structure. The goals of an internal control
system are to maximize the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and the ability to place reliance on generating
reliable financial information and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

We test the internal control structure as we are required under Government Auditing Standards in order to issue

the Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on the Audit of the Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Also, if we can rely on the internal control
structure of the Institution, we can reduce our substantive testing during fieldwork.

We test transactions representing major and certain other cycles of the Institution to assess control risk. The major
cycles include student revenue, cash receipts, cash disbursements, payroll and financial aid. Under our approach,
we first understand the organizational structure and the control procedures of the Institution through inquiry

of personnel and review of source documents. After an understanding of the processes is attained, transactions

are randomly selected to test each system cycle. The specific control attributes for each transaction include
authorization, source documentation, and safeguards of the asset and segregation of duties. Control risk is then
assessed based upon the results of the testing of transactions.

O’Connor and Drew, P.C. pride ourselves as a key player within the Massachusetts State and Community College
system. We currently serve as the auditor for twenty-two public colleges within the State of Massachusetts. The

firm is committed to continuing our strong involvement in the higher education sector. Principals and staff are highly
active in professional organizations which include the National Association of College and University Business Officers
(NACUBO) and the Eastern Association of College and University Business Officers (EACUBO). We are active leaders
in a number of conferences and training programs provided by the State Universities and Community Colleges and

the State's Comptroller's Office. Each June, the firm participates in the State Universities and Community College
joint comptroller and CFO meeting and presents timely topics to the group such as Clery Act Compliance, new GASB
implementation issues, IT Risk Alerts and Single Audit Compliance. More recently, the firm hosted a question and
answer session related to CARES Act compliance and a discussion related to benchmark ratios.

We understand the challenges facing the higher education industry and our objective is to provide you with cost
effective services to help your institution prosper. We offer a myriad of services to our institutions including, but, not
limited to the following:

Financial statement audits

Uniform guidance audit engagements
MOSFA engagements

Internal audits

Benchmarking

UPMIFA compliance

Tax compliance and consulting services
NCAA agreed upon procedure engagements
Termination of Perkins Loan Programs
Board support and development

Assurance and accounting services

Clery Act Compliance

Assistance with financing relationships and tax exempt funding
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All of our staff members are in compliance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards relating to the
General Standards, Fieldwork Standards and Reporting Standards. The General Standards of Government Auditing
Standards require staff assigned to the specific engagement to possess adequate professional proficiency for the

task required, exercise due professional care and are independent in fact and appearance of the auditee. Under the
General Standards the firm must have an internal quality control system in place and undergo an external quality
control review. The staff members assigned to the Institutional engagements possess the adequate professional
proficiency and exercise due professional care for the tasks required for the audit through experience of auditing other
higher educational institutions and our program of continuing education and training. Also, we have a Quality Control
Division that is independent of the Auditing Division. The Quality Control Division of the Firm approves all financial
statements before they are issued.

The Fieldwork Standards of Government Auditing Standards require us to properly plan the engagement, design tests
to report on internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations and maintain adequate working papers. We
believe that the planning stage is the most important part of the engagement. We always incorporate management
and the BOT Finance Committee and the Board of Trustees in our planning process. Proper planning will identify any
problems or obstacles early in the process to have enough time to solve them. Also, in the planning stage we develop
our approach to test internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations. Our vast experience in higher
education leads us to test internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations effectively and efficiently and to
document our working papers which comply with Government Auditing Standards.

The Reporting Standards of Government Auditing Standards require us to communicate the results of the audit with
the responsible individuals and report on the internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations. At the end
of the audit, we conduct meetings with management, the BOT Finance Committee and the Board of Trustees, Our
reports are in the format as instructed by the Massachusetts State Comptroller’s Office.

All of our staff are required to obtain 24 credits of Government Auditing Standards (yellow book) training every two
years which is in compliance with the general standards. This training applies to all personnel from the principal in
charge to the entry level staff performing internal control transaction testing.

Our staff is also adequately trained with the Uniform Administrative audit requirements (formerly A-133). O'Connor
and Drew, P.C. issues Uniform Guidance Audit Reports for each of the Institutions on an annual basis. Additionally,
the majority of our Massachusetts client base requires MOSFA engagements every third year. All of our audit staff are
trained to perform these engagements, and, more specifically, compliance testing over student financial aid. The firm
also sends a number of staff each year to a National training conference related to Student Financial Aid.

As part of our current year Single Audit engagements, the Firm was required to test the CARES Act funding. There was
significant confusion as to how the funds could be spent due to the late issuance of the Compliance Supplement as
well as the ever changing dynamics on how the funds could be expended. The firm held several sessions with the state
universities and community colleges in assisting in determining whether expenses were high or low risk.

We believe that the most relevant factor for the Massachusetts State University and Community Colleges to
consider is the level of experience of the individuals who will lead the engagement. A complete understanding of the
Institution environment and Federal compliance requirements are prerequisites to a timely, effective and efficient
audit.
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We hire our staff with the objective of maintaining a low turnover rate. We recruit from the top business schools in the
area and generally hire individuals who graduated with honors in accounting. Our philosophy is to attract and retain
outstanding individuals. We do not hire in excess of our needs and avoid the practice of hiring and firing. We assign
the same staff from year to year on recurring engagements. This practice allows for a less disruptive audit engagement
and avoids management from retraining audit personnel of the specific details of that particular institution’s
processes. With this philosophy, our firm has avoided significant turnover. If the firm should experience any turnover
within the staffing of your engagement, the partner and manager will ensure that you will not have any disruption in
services.

O'Connor and Drew, P.C. has a significant niche within the higher education sector. As such, we have an abundant

of trained personnel to serve you efficiently and effectively. We have included resumes for those personnel who will
be assigned to service Fitchburg State University. Each of these personnel have significant experience within the
Massachusetts public state and community college system. Each is committed to providing unmatched professional
service, and, understand the Massachusetts Institution environment. And lastly, and, most importantly, each
professional understands the importance of the October 15th due date. We, as a firm, pride ourselves that we meet
that important deadline each year, even with our consistent growth within the industry.

Please note the following individuals within the firm will be assigned to the audit engagement. We have also attached
their respective resumes,

David Dilulis Director of Higher Education Practice
Zachary LaFlash Audit Principal

Michael Cronin Audit Manager

Frank O'Brien Audit Principal

Steve Cohen Audit Principal, Quality Control
Lauren Carnes Tax Principal

Michael Hammond IT Audit & Security Principal

As noted earlier within the proposal, all of our audit staff are trained to perform audits of Institutions. The individuals
listed above represent only the senior management of the firm.

Feie

We support the recent changes made by FASB, GASB and the AICPA to make the audits of governmental and non-
profits entities more useful and transparent to the various stakeholders of those entities. The stakeholders of public
institutions include students and employees of the College, bondholders, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and

the general public.

There are a number of GASB pronouncements with implementation dates over the next several fiscal year ends. Each
of these have been disclosed within the financial statements of each of our public higher educational clients for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. A listing of those are listed below:

-GASB 87-Leases;

-GASB 89-Accounting for Interests Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period;;

-GASB 90-Majority Equity Interests;
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~GASB 91-Conduit Debt Obligations;

-GASB 92- Omnibus 2020

-GASB 93-Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates;

-GASB 94-Public Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements;

-GASB 96-Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements; and

-GASB 97-Certain Component Unit criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457, Deferred Compensation.

The most significant pronouncement that will be affecting public institutions in the near future (fiscal year ending june
30, 2022) revolve around the implementation of the lease standard. We have started planning for the implementation
as information will also be required for Fiscal 2021 if comparative statements are to be issued for 2022. We have had
several meetings with the Massachusetts School College Building Authority (MSCBA) and their respective accounting
firm. The lease standard is discussed further within the lease with affiliated entities section of this proposal.

Other projects that are underway at the GASB (exposure draft form) are Conceptual Framework related to
Disclosures. The objective of this pronouncement is to improve the overall effectiveness of note disclosures within
governmental financial reports. The framework will establish criteria to use in evaluating potential note disclosure
requirements. A second major project is evaluation of the current financial reporting model. Although the current
model is viewed as effective, the research performed by GASB identified several areas for potential improvement.
An updated model would enhance the management discussion and analysis section of the statements, explore

a consistent measurement focus and basis of accounting within the governmental fund statements and explore
operating indicator alternatives in conjunction with evaluating the separate presentation of operating and non-
operating revenues and expenses.

GASB is also in the midst of exploring a number of other issues which are in exposure draft status, comment period
status or are in initial deliberations. A few of the projects that may affect public institutions are as follows:

-Compensated Absences;

-Prior Period Adjustments;

-Renaming the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report;

-Risks and Uncertainties Disclosures;

-Capital Assets;

-Going Concern Disclosures.

Although not a current project by FASB, GASB or the AICPA, there is a growing concern that the composite ratio
information that is required to be presented as supplementary information for private institutions could be potentially
considered for public institutions in the future. Determining the financial health of institutions is a growing concern
and disclosing identifiable factors such as the primary reserve, viability ratio, return on net position ratio, the net
operating revenues ratio computing an overall composite may be useful information to the general public. EY
Parthenon has been consulting with the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education in developing various
benchmark ratio indicators as well.
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Although Public Institutions do not apply FASB standards, there are changes on the horizon for the presentation of
financial statements for Not —for- Profit Entities that Foundations will be required to consider. Since the Foundations
are component units of the State Universities and Community Colleges, some of these changes may roll up to the
statements of the Institutions. A few of the provisions of the change are as follows:

-Similar to public institutions, private institutions will also be required to implement a new leasing
standard;

-Fair Value Measurement which will add, modify, or eliminate certain fair value instrument
disclosures; and

-Updating the Definition of Collections, which expands the definition of collections to allow the sale of
collections to be used for the direct care of existing collections.

We believe that communication throughout the year between the auditing firm and the Institution is key to a timely
and efficient audit engagement. The level of communication includes meeting with the BOT Finance Committee
and the Board of Trustees and/or the management of the University prior to the commencement of the interim work
to discuss the scope of the engagement and to discuss any new risks/concerns and to review any new accounting
pronouncements.

We also believe that continuous communication during the course of the audit engagement whether it be weekly
meetings, or periodic updates of progress is beneficial towards meeting the deadlines as well as avoiding any
unnecessary surprises. Management should be kept abreast of any areas of concern which may impede the progress
of the engagement.

Lastly, we will meet with the BOT Finance Committee and the board of trustees to deliver the results of the audit
engagement. This includes reviewing the financial statements, the management letter as well as required auditor
communications as dictated by our professional standards. Our overall responsibility is to the boards of the respective
institutions, and, to convey the results of the engagement to them. At this year end meeting we generally discuss
within our required communications any new GASB pronouncements which would affect the following year's
engagement. We believe that we are very proactive as a firm in communicating any new pronouncements that may
affect the individual institution.

We encourage constant communication throughout the year with our client base. We believe that we are business
partners with our clients and there are significant benefits to keeping us involved with any changes that may occur
outside the course of the audit. We do not charge our clients for these routine calls as we believe this is an investment
of our time to produce a more efficient audit engagement.
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O'Connor and Drew, P.C. has several mailings which are sent to each of our clients. One of the mailings is specific

to the higher education industry. The second is more general in nature and apply to commercial as well as non
commercial type entities We have attached a copy of a recent newsletter within our proposal submission. We

have also implemented “constant contact” which gives us the opportunity to mass e-mail to specific clients/industries
of any news warranted issues pertaining to new IRS regulations, HR policies, record safeguard issues and a variety of
other related topics.

We have a number of training courses that are presented during the course of the year. Typical topics include student
financial aid, testing internal control systems, annual accounting updates, and annual income tax updates. Any
interested clients are welcome to attend any or all of these courses at no cost to the respective institution.

We would also make available our internal control checklists which we utilize in understanding your overall internal
control environment. In addition, we would also make available any electronic working papers that we have created in
the hopes that it would benefit the Institution in addressing audit concerns more effectively.

o B &

O'Connor and Drew, P.C. does not bill for any additional projects unless it is approved by the management of the
respective Institution in advance. We do not have "add-ons” for additional services outside the scope of the audit
without the specific client’s knowledge. We also do not bill for routine telephone calls made by an institution during
the course of the year.

However, there are situations whereby the Institution may want to engage the firm for additional projects outside the
course of the audit engagement. The genesis of these special services could be a client request, or a recommendation
from us. Some examples of prior special services that we have performed for our higher educational institution
clients include closing out Perkins loan programs, assistance with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR),
performance of the Massachusetts Office of Student Financial Assistance Audit (MOSFA), agreed upon procedure
engagements relating to federal financial aid, review of indirect overhead cost calculations, and compliance with
instructional hours in compliance with union contracts and state regulations. Each of these projects were discussed in
advance, and, a fee was agreed upon between the institution and O'Connor and Drew, P.C.

In addition, each non-audit service opportunity is reviewed in accordance with the GAO Independence Standards
as well as the AICPA’s Code of Conduct to determine whether the potential project conflicts with the professional
standards. There are two leading principles we generally consider:

»  Whether the non-audit services involve performing management functions or making management decisions; and
»  We cannot audit our own work or provide audit services in situations where the non-audit services are significant
or material to the subject matter of the audits.

In the case where each one of theses principles are satisfied, we refer to the GAO independence standards which
identifies various non-audit services, and, what is permitted or prohibited.
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O’Connor and Drew, P.C. currently audits twenty-two of the twenty four institutions within the Massachusetts public
college system. We have developed a specialty niche within the system and have invested a significant amount of
resources in developing this over the past twenty years. We have added additional clients each year with no affect on
the quality of the product or timeliness. We have added personal resources as the higher education practice has grown
to ensure the proper level of service and attention is given to every client. We pride ourselves on meeting all deadlines
and have a documented track record of meeting each Institution’s October 15th deadline. We coordinate with each
Institution to ensure that the draft or final statements (depending on the individual Institution’s board of trustees/
director's meeting dates) are submitted to each governing body; the State Comptroller’s Office, the State Auditor’s
Office and the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education by October 15th of each year.

Based on our current portfolio, and the quality and expertise of our management team and staff, we will continue to
meet the high expectations of our current client base as well as those new institutions. We believe that we could add
a number of institutions to our client mix without adding any additional resources. We believe that adding this many
would not compromise our quality of service and we would have no problems in meeting the October 15th deadline.

GASB Statement-87 Leases is effective for years beginning July 1, 2021 for fiscal years ending June 30, 2022,
Implementation of this standard will require lessees to recognize on their statement of net position the rights and
obligations resulting from leases currently categorized as operating leases as assets, liabilities or deferred inflows/
outflows of resources. It provides for an election on leases with terms of less than twelve months to be excluded from
this statement. A lessee government will be required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible asset representing
its right to use the leased asset. A lessor government will be required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources.

A lessee would also report amortization expense related to the leased asset (recognizing the asset amount as an
expense over the lease term), interest expense related to the lease liability, and note disclosures with information
about the respective leasing arrangement. A lessor would report lease revenue (and a corresponding reduction in
the deferred inflow over the term of the leases), interest revenue related to the receivable and note disclosures with
information about the leasing arrangement.

This new standard will require each of the State Universities and Community Colleges to review each of their current
arrangements, especially those that involve the MSCBA. Planning and communication will be key to avoid any
surprises prior to the actual implementation date of the pronouncement.

O’Connor and Drew, P.C. is well prepared to assist the College and Universities in the implementation of the new
lease standards through multiple state institutions. We have always worked as a team in implementing prior
pronouncements (GASB 68 and 75 being the most recent examples)with our College portfolio and we will show the
same energy and enthusiasm going forward We also have the benefit of having an existing working relationship with
the MSCBA, its audit firm as well as the State Comptroller's Office.
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LETTER OF INTENT TO SUBMIT PROPOSAL — Appendix A

Please e-mail this notification of receipt and intent on or before March 18, 2022 to

stiLe

G,

A. Acknowledgment of Receipt:

O Ol)ﬂ Ny ) D . LLJ Hereby Acknowledges Receipt of RFP packet
(Company) L ‘
David i 1-(;(/[‘\5 Print name
)ﬁ%bélé/ Q«L \;Z%/é{/! Authorized Signature
ﬁ(//ﬂ i pﬂc’l()/,[)lé// Title

Much 17 2079 Date

E/i will attend the pre-bid meeting and intend to submit a proposal (please fill in Part B)

D I will not attend the pre-bid meeting; intend to submit a proposal.
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The proposer hereby agrees to furnish items and/or services pursnant to all requirements and
specifications contained in this document. The proposer further agrees that the language in this document
shall govern in the event of a conflict with the proposer's proposal.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURLE [ PRINTED NAME TITLI

Daed, b ki David B Zelro Huedrt ﬂ’/rw/,m/

COMPANY ’ DATE
<A . / j / . ) -
O Cinow - er, P,C. A’;W// Yyya
MAILING ADDRESS PIIONT,

25 Brambae Hill vhice ok (107) 471~ 1170

crry STATL ‘ 71’ CODE

Dt et WA DA &

EMPLOYERS FEDERAE TAX
1D (9 DIGITS)

04 - 3000 5 AT
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COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM

Services
ther form Is nol prescribed by regulation or policy. The Commonwealth deems vold any changes made on or

by altz;chment {in the form of addendum, engagement lellers, conlract forms or involce lerms) lo the terms In this published form or o the_Standard Contract Form Instructions and Gontractor
Certifications, the Gommonwealth Terms and Conditions for Human and Soclal Services or the Commonwealth IT Terms and Conditlons which are Incorporated by teference hereln.

Addilional non-conflicting terms may be added by Atlachment, Conlraclors are requ
0SD Forms; htips:/iwww.mass.govllislslosd-forms,

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME: COMMONWEALTH DEPARTMENT NAME:
{and dibla): MMARS Depariment Code:
Legal Address: (W-9, W-4): Business Mailing Address:
Contract Manager: Phone: Billing Address (if different):
E-Mall: Fax: Contract Manager: Phone:
Contractor Vendor Code: VC E-Mall: Fax:
Vendor Code Address 1D (e.g. "AD001"): AD__. MMARS Doc ID{s):
{Note: The Address 1D must be set up for EFT payments.) RFRIProcurement or Other ID Number:
__ NEW CONTRACT ‘ ____ CONTRACT AMENDMENT
PROCUREMENT OR EXCEPTION TYPE: (Check one option only) Enter Current Conlract End Date Prior to Amendment: ____,20__.
__ Statewide Gontract (OSD or an OSD-deslgnated Depariment) Enler Amendment Amount: $ . {or "o change’)
__Collective Purchase (Atiach OSD approval, scope, budgel), AMENDMENT TYPE: (Check one optlon only. Attach detalls of amendient changes.)
__Depariment Procurement (includes all Grants - §15 GiR 2.00) (Solicitalion __ Amendment to Date, Scope or Budget (Atlach updaled scape and budget)
ENolIce or RFR, and Response or other procurement supporiing documentation) - §  yvarim Contract {Atiach justification for Interim Contract and updated scope/budgel)
__Emergency Contract (Altach justification for emergency, scope, budget)
"~ Contract Employee (Attach Employment Stalus Form, scope, budget) — Contract Employee (Atiach any updales (o scope o budgel)
— Other Procurement Exception (Attach authorizlng language, leglslation with __Other Procurement Exception (Atlach authorizing languagefjustification and updaled
speclfic exemption or earmark, and exception jusliication, scope and budget) scope and budge()

The Standard Contract Form Instructions and Contractor Certifications and the following Gommonwealth Terms and Conditions document are incorporated by reference
Into this Contract and are legally hinding: (Check ONE optlon): __ Commonwealth Terms and Condilions __ Commonwealth Terms and Conditions For Human and Social
Servlc_ei . Commonwea_l_m IT Terms §_nd Condltions : :

COMPENSATION: (Check ONE option); The Department certifies that payments for authorized performance accepled in accordance with the terms of this Conlract will be supported
n the slate accounting system by sufficient appropriations or olher non-appropriated funds, subject fo Intercept for Commonwealth owed debls under 815 CMR 9,00,
__Rate Contract. (No Maximum Obligation) Altach detalls of afl rates, unfls, calculalions, conditions or terms and any changes If rales or terms are being amended.)

__Maximum Obligatlon Contract. Enter lotal maximum obligation for total duration of this contract {or new lolal if Contract is belng amended). $

PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNTS (PPD): Commonwealth payments are issued through EFT 45 days from invoice receipt, Conlraclors requesling accelerated payments must identify
a PPD as follows: Payment lssued within 10 days __% PPD; Payment Issued within 16 days _ % PPD; Paymenl Issued wilhin 20 days __ % PPD; Paymenl issued within 30 days
__% PPD. If PPD percentages are left blank, Identify reason: _agree to standard 45 day cycle __ stalutoryfiegal or Ready Payments (M.G.L. c. 29, § 23A); __ only inltial payment
(subsequent payments scheduled (o suppor standard EFT 45 day payment cycle, See Prompt Pay Discounls Policy.)

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE or REASON FOR AMENDMENT: (Enler the Conlract lile, purpose, fiscal year(s) and a delalled description of the scope of
performance or what Is being amended for a Contract Amendment. Allach all supporting documentation and justifications.)

ANTICIPATED START DATE: (Complele ONE option enly) The Department and Contractor certlfy for this Conlracl, or Contract Amendment, that Contract obligations:

__ 1. may be Incurred as of the Effective Dale (lalest signalure date below) and no obligations have been incurred prior o the Effeclive Dale.

__ 2. may be incurred as of ,20__, adale LATER than the Effective Date below and nio obligatlons have been incurred prior to the Effeclive Date,

__ 3, were Incurred as of ,20___, a dale PRIOR to the Effective Date below, and the parlles agree thal payments for any obligations incurred prior to the Effective Dale are
aulhorized to he made either as sefllement payments or as authorized relmbursement payments, and thal the details and clrcumstances of all obligatlons under this Conlract are
atlached and Incomorated into this Contract. Acceplance of payments forever releases the Commonweallh from further claims relaled to these obllgations.

CONTRACT END DATE: Conlract performance shall terminale as of , 20, vilth no new obligatlons belng Incurred after this date unless the Gontract is properly amended,
provided that the terms of this Contract and performance expeclations and obligations shall survive ils termination for the purpose of resolving any claim or dispule, for compleling any
negoliated terms and warranties, {o allow any close out or transillon performance, reporting, involcing of final payments, or during any fapse between amendments.

CERTIFICATIONS: Notwithstanding verbal or other representallons by the pariies, the “Effective Date” of this Conlract or Amendment shall be the latest date that this Conract or
Amendment has been execuled by an authorized signalory of the Conlractor, the Depariment, or a later Conlract or Amendment Start Date specified above, subject to any required
approvals, The Conlraclor cerlifies thal they have accessed and reviewed all documents incorporaled by reference as efectronically published and the Contractor makes all cerifications
required under the Slandard Conlract Form Instruclions and Contractor Certilications under the pains and penalties of perjury, and further agrees to provide any required documentalion
upon request 1o supporl compliance, and agrees that all terms governing performance of this Conlract and doing business In Massachusetis are attached or incorporated by reference
hereln according to the following hierarchy of document precedence, the applicable Commonweallh Terms and Conditions, this Standard Contract Form, the Standard Conltract Form
Instructions and Contractor Cerlilcations, the Request for Response (RFR) or other solicitation, the Conlraclors Response {excluding any language slricken by a Depariment as
unacceplable, and addilional negoliated terms, provided that additional negotiated terms will take precedence over ihe relevant terms in the RFR and the Contraclor’s Response only if
made using the process outlined In 801 GMR 21.07, incorporaled hereln, provided thal any amended RFR or Response ferms resullin bes! value, lower costs, or a more cost effeclive
Contract.

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE FOR THE CONTRACTOR: AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE FOR THE COMMONWEALTH:
X: \Paf LA &\M& . Date: (Z’g,g;{/ UIPYAT NS B¢ . Date:
(Stgnature andVDate Must Be Handwritten At Time of Signature) (Signature and Date Must Be Handwritten At Time of Slgnature)

bt hawid Dol T
Tn e, . . :H
Autiif /757 AL ﬂﬂ
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Tlis Conmenwentih Terms and Conditlons form Is Jolutly
Issued by tho Bxesulive Office for Administratlon and
tinnnes (ANP), the Office of the Compiroller (CTR) md the Operational
Servlees Diviston (OSD) for use by nil Commonwenllh of Massnchusells
{“State”) Deparluients and Conlvacloss.. Anp changes o elevironle alteruilons
by eithor the Depavinent ok the Conlracter to the offielal verston of this form,
as Jolnily published by AN, CTR and OSD, shall be vold. Upon execullon of
Itic Staudard Contraol Form these Covmonwealih Torms and Conditions will bo
ficoporated by veference.  Parformenes sholl fnolude seivlees rendeved,
obligations due, costs fnowved, gommndi(ius and dollverables provided and
nceepled by e Depurtinend, progwms provided or other conymitments
anthorlzed under n Conttaol, A delivevable shalt nelude any tangible product to
be delivered ns an clemont of pofannance wnder a Coaliacl,  The
Commonwenlth ls entitled to ownershlp nud possession of all dollverables
purshsed or doveloped with Stalo fuuds, Contenct shull wienn the Standard
Conttast Fom lssued Jolutly by ANT, CTR and 0SD, '

1. ContraelEffeetive Stmid Dufe,  Notwithstandlng verbal ov other
mprcsu'n!ullons by the pmiles, lhe elfeotive slot duls of performpnes wnder o
Contimet shiafl bo the later ol tho date the Conluact was sxeented by an nuthorized
slguntary of tho Contrngtor, the dats tho Confract was excatted by an autliovized
signalory of the Department, the doto specified In the Contnct, ov the dalo of any
npprovals requived by lnw or regulation, .
9 Pavmonis Al Componsation, The Continctor shall only be compensated for
porforonco dellvered aud aceepled by the Depavimant in aocordauee with the
speolfi tomms aud sondltions of a Conlinel, All Conbael prgments ave subject
to appropriatton pursunnt to M.G.L. g, 20, § 26, or the avallnbliity of sufffclent
nou-oppropilated finds for the purposes of a Continel, and shall bo subect to
Iiteraept pursunid to ML.OL. o, 74, 8.3 and 13 CMR 9.00, Ovarpnymenis shall
bo relnburzed by the Contractor o mny be offsct by the Depriment from future
paymesls I accordanco with stnte finnue law, Acceplance by the Continelor
of nny paymenl or partinl poyment, whliont nay wiitlen objection by the
Contwaotor, shall in each lnstanee operate s & relense and dischurge of the State
foam all elatms, Nobililies ov ather obligalions voletiug to the porforntance ol
Conlmel,

3, Cofraetor Payutent Mechanisi, All Conligolovs will bo pold vsing the
Compliofle’s pryment systom unless o diffovent paymont mechonsm s
requited.  The Conlrastor shfl lmely submil hivoices nnd  supporiing
docwmentation os preserlbed In a Contracl, The Depariment shall veview and
velwmn roleoled fuvoloes wilhin fifteen (15) days of vecolpt with o wiltlon
explunatlon for vajeotion, Payneils shail ho wado in aecovdance with tho bitl
paylig potloy lssued by the Offics of the Complroller gud §15 CMR 4,00,
provitted that payient periods listed in a Conlrol of fess then ‘fqﬂy-ﬁ\'c (43)
days Tvom the date of rgoolpt of a fnvotee shall be effective only to enable o
Deparlwent to tnks advanlage of enly payiment fncentives and shatl not subjecl
any pryaest mads within the forly-five (45) dey pedod to o*ponsity. The
Contnator Payrell System shall be used only for Indivldual Conliactors who
fravo been dolermined to bo Contraat Biployees as a reswlt of tho Dopariment’s
completlon of an lnternal Revenus Sewvice §8-8 fori In sccordantu with the
Onmibus Budget Reconclilatlon Act (OBRA) 1890, and shall automatically
provess all stalo nud Fedoral mandated payvotl, tnx and retivoment deductions.

4 Contrael Tovmination OvSuspenston, A Contract shall teontnale on tho date
speetfied In o Continel, untess this duto Is properly amended I accordance with
it nppHenble laws and vegutullons priov to S date, ar unless tomlnaded ot
stispended under this Scction upon prioy wiltten notles lo the Conlvaalor, The
Deparinent moy termiinle a Contenal yithoul couro and wliliowl pennfty, o may
letninalo o suspand o Contynot IT e Contractor breachios my matevtal Lo or
conditlon o flls to perform op ML any materdal abligation requbiedl by o
Contimel, or u the ovent of an ellminatlon of an npprapiintion or avalinbility of
suffiofont fands for the pyoses of 1 Contraal, ov i the ovent of nh vhforescen

COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDYTIONS

publie gmergenoy wandallng Inmedinte Depavtimént actlon, Upon lanedinto
uollftentlon to the other purty, nelthor ihe Deparintent nor the Conlractoy shall bo
doemed to be n brenaly fov fhllure ov delny Iy performanee duo lo Acls of God or
olher cnvses Metually beyond thelv control and without thely fault or negligence,
Subeonhactor falture o pevform or pileo lucreases due to mavked fineluntions ox
praduet nvallability will not bo deemed fhetuntly beyond the Conlclor's
contval, :

8, Woitten Nojled, Any nolice shall be deomed delivered and veeeived when
submitted I wiltiog' I porson or when deflvered by any ofher appropilate
method ovidencing nolunl recolpt by the Depmtment or the Contlinslor,  Any
weliten nottee of tenndnntlon ar suspeuston deflvered (o the Contraclor shall stnte
{he effective date and perlod of the notfoe, the vensous Tov the termiuntlon oy

" suspension, {Cupplienble, any alleged bieach or flluve to pevfonm, o teasonable

portad to cure any ulleged brench or falivre to perfonn, If applionble, ond any
Instrtotians ov resiviotions concerning alowable activilies, costs or oxpentitures
by iho Contmelor during the nelice peviad,

6, Confidentlglity. o Contenstor shall comply with M.Q.L, ¢ 66A il lhe
Conluetor beeames a “holder” of “personal dafa”, ‘The Conliaetor shall also
voleot the physieal scoudty ond veslriol any nceess lo personnl or cther
Dopariment ddnln n the Conlraslor’s posscssion, or used by lhe Conliactar in the
performnnce of o Cowtraot, which shalt Include, but is not lhnited to, the
Depustiment’s publlo reeords, documents, files, soRwaie, equipment o' systems,
1, Revovd-keaping Aud Retendlon, Inspectlon OF Recortds, The Continctor shull
matnlain reeovds, books, files and ather daln as speolfied tn o Contvact and {o
such detall as shall properly substantlate elafins for payment uider a Conlinat,
for o winimwmn velentlon povlod of six (8) years boglaning on the fivst doy afer
the final pryment undor n Contract, or such longar perlad as Is neeassary for the
resoluton of any Htigatlon, olaim, negotntion, sudlt ov alhey nquivy favolving n
Contwel, Tho Depactmenl shall have access, ns well gs agy protics dentificd
under Exceutivo Ordar 195, durlug the Conlinator’s regular buslness hours nud
wpon reasonnblo prlor notlce, fo aueh vecords, inoluding on-site reviews and
vepraductlon of suel recotds al a vensonnblo oxpense,

B, dsslepment, The Contraclor miny not essign or delogale, It whelo or b put,

or otliorwlse (ransfer any Hnbliity, vesponslbility, obligatlon, duty or fnterest
wider n Conleact, with the oxcoption that the Canitactor shiall be mthovized to
assign present and prospeetive clalns for monay due ta lhe Coutraclor piivsunt
1o o Contrael 1n necovdnneo with M.G.L, ¢, 106, § 9-318, The Conlractor st
provide suffiolent notlee of sssiguwent and supporting docwnentation to onsble
tha Deprrtinent to verity and lmplement the asslg {, Pryments lo thivd pavly
osslgnees Wil be processed as if sueh payments weve belng made divectly to the
Conlinalor nnd these payments will bo subjeol to futeveepl, offsel, aowntor ololims
or any other Depurtiment vights which ave avaitable (o the Depnilinent or tho Slato
ngoinst the Contracloy,

Y. Sulicantiacting_ By _Conlractop  Any subconliact entered jnto by the
Coutraclor for the purpeses of fulfititng the obligations under o Conlract must be
In welting, authorized In advanes by the Depnrtmont nud shall bo consistent with
and subjeet to the pravlslona of lheso Commonwwealth Tenms and Conditions and
a Contracl, Suboonivacts will not relleve ov discharge the Contiactor from any
duty, obligation, vesponslbliity o (lability avislng widor o Conlvact,  The
Depariment Js enfitled 1o coples of ll subeontinols and shall not bo bound by
any provislons conlnfued In n subeonlvaal to which It ls not a party, '
10, dffiemative Aedon, Non-Diseylminatlon Ju Hivliie Aud Bploywent, The
Continetor shall comply with afl fedeml aud state Inws, wles aud rogulntons
promoting foly employment practicas or prohibting cmployment diserhmbnation
and unfule laborpractices and shnll not disorhmtunte In the hiving o any appileant
for eniploymont nor shall any qualified coployes bo domoted, dischuvged on
alherwise subject to disorlminatlon I the tenuve, posiion, promotionni
opportunitles, wages, bonofits ov lerms ond condltions of tholr employment

beenuse of race, coloy, natlonal ovlgiy, aneesly, age, sox, vollglon, disablilty,
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lmndlcup, sexual ovlenintion o foy oxevalslug nny ghts
offoded by iy, iy Contrastor eonimiis 1o purehasing
supiles and serviees from ceddified wihiovity or women.
owned huslncssns, sl bustwsses op bushiesses owped by soclully op
cconomieally disadvaninged HeEsons ot pessans with disabliitlos,

M Judemnificutton, Unless olhotwlse exompled by faw, the Contrpetor shall
ludnnmily md hold hosmless o Sinlo, noluding the Departuany, lts genls,
(offieers niy emplayees ugalnst any and ol elaiins, lnbiMties and costs for iy
pessonnl fufiry or Property dumnges, patent or sopyelght Infelogement op other
damoges that the State snny sustaln whialy mvlse owl of or I somteotlon with il
Canlimalor's performnines of o Confraol, ncluding bt noy fited ta the
negligence, reckless op intentlonnl condyey of lhe Conlractor, g ngents, of iaers,
cmployees orsubconlinelors, The Contractor shall ot no thio bo considored un
ngenl orvepresentntlyo of the Depavtient or the State, Alter prompt notifieation
ofa olaim by the Slnlo, the Conlrnetor shall have nu appartunily lo putlofpate In
the defonse ofspely olaiin and iy negolinled scltlement aveement or judmment,
The State shnti ot be linble for pny costs ineutved by the Contvaslor arlslng under
s paragragsn, Auy Indemalficatlon of the Contmotor sfinf) bo subjeol lo
approprintlon and applieable Jow,

12, Walveys, Farbeavanco of lndulgence In any fonn o inminer by o parly shyll
nolbe consied gs walver, nor i any way limil the legni or equllable vemedieg
avallable (o {hn baity, No wulver by uitlyy pusty of any defull or breqeh shall
consiltule o walyey oFuny subscqnent deful or breoh,

13, Risk OrLoss, The Contmolor alull beay the visk af loss foy auy Condmotoy
malernls used for 0 Conlyel and fov pit doliverables, Depnetmont personal or
other daty which is fu (e possesslon of e Confyactor o used by the Continetor
i the porformanca of q Continel, unl(f possesslon, owitorship and (il lagal tite
to the delivecables pie fransfonved (o nnd accepled-by (e Denrimen),

W, Forgm, Chojee o Lo And Medigion, Auy notlons nidsing ont of n
Conlinal shall be govarmed by the laws of Mnssachusells, ond shull be braught
and malifalned In g state or fedoyal court fy Mussnahusells whicl shall have
oxoluslve Jurlsdletlon thereol,  The Deportnent, witlh g npproval of the
Allomsy Geneyal’s Offiee, nud the Contraeior may agrea to vohmtay medtatlon
throvgh the Mussachusalis Offtee of Dispute Resolution (MODR) of any
Conlract d!spu(c.nnd Wil shave the costy of stol wedlatlon, No legal or equitably

¥lghts ol the paeiles shall bo Hmiled by ihis Scetion,
15, Congraet Ilgllag'ngla ,!plarpm(ﬂllou, Saveruditiay Conflivts Wi L
Mepraflon, Any amendment o altnchment 1o oy Canltnot whish contalng

vonflloting lngunge or has the eflcel of o delollng, vephelng or modityng any
printed luigungo of these Commonwealth ‘Fesns eud Couditlons, bs oftiolally
published by ANF, CTR g 08D, shall ho Intempreted s avpetseded by the
offlslal piivted language, Jr auy provision of g Conlrael I found fo bo
Supeiseded by state o fedoral o vegulation, tn whole ar Iy {od, then both
paties shall be valleved of off obligations undey flim Provision anly to fhe extent
Heeessmy to comply with (e superseding law; provided howaver, that the
teinnining provisians of the Cantvact, or portions thevenl; shall bo enforged 1o
the Millest oxtent permitied by lnw, Al muondmenls st bo oxgouted by the
partles I accordnnco il Scatiolr 1 of these Commonwentih ‘Porms gud
Counditlons and fited with the ovlginul vevord opy of'u Conivnel ng prosevibed by
CTR, The minled langungo of 1o Standud Gonlenof Favm, ns olfioinity
publishied by ANK, CTR and GSD, whioh incamorates by rofetonos theso
Commonwealih Tavmns and Conditlons, shajj supersedo pny conflothig vorbip oy
willten igreemenis rolating fo the perfosmancs ofg Contint, av ailached theycto,
noluding continet forms, purchase oyedeys or nvoloes of fhy Collinelor, The
arder of prioity of dnouments lo Intewpret o Continal shall be rs follows: the
printed languoge of the Commonwenlth Terms nnd Conditions, the Standag
Conlmot Yorm, the Depanrtment's Request for Respange (RPR) sollaitation
doswment and fhe Conlrastor’s Rosponse to the _PR solfollation, oxotuding nng
lauguage siriken by o Deparfmen as ueeeplablo and Inoluding any negatinted
tevms and gonditlons nflowab (e st Lo Iy oy vegulntion,

Page 2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOT, iho Contenctor certifie undor tho palis ang
Ienaltles of porfury that i shaly comply with these Connonwenlih Teumns
mitd - Conditlons  fop iy applleable Conging
Comimonwonlth s cerlitled by tyoly nuthoyized slpiatory slgulng e
Stondnd Contrnot Fovm,
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“ertificate of Non Collusion

CERTIFICATE OF NON COLLUSION

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this RFP or Proposal has been made
and submitted In good faith and without colluslon or fraud with any other person, As used In
this certification, the word “parson” shall me any hatural person, business, partnership,
corporation, unlon, committee, club or other organization, entity or group of Individuals,

D, DIl Apsd 1, 2099,

Authorized Signatute* Date

David Diteelis
Printed Name of Person Sighing RFFP or
Proposal®

O (oopor: "Swwi P .

Name of Business

#*Must be slgned In ink

~«Powered by BoardOnTrac
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Financial Auditing Services

Financial Auditing Services

Pursuant to Section 49A (b) of Chapter 62C of the General Law,

| David Dilulis , authorized Signatory
for O Chan' I]wwl, P.(.. ,whose principle place of business is
at_ haahee sassachosetts do hereby certify under pains and

penalties of perjury that__ O (hanw- * draw, P.C-

Complies with all laws of the Commonwealth relating to taxes.

Authorized Signature )M,w@ SRV

Date_ April [ ADpa

Itis 1he policy and commitment of Fitchburg State Universily not 1o discriminate on the basis of race, religlon, color, age, sexual orientation, sex
handicap, veleran status, marital status, o natlonat origin In its educational programs, activities, admissions or employment policies and to
actively comply with the requirements of Federal Fxecutive Orders 11246 and 11375 as amended: the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Title
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Access to Contractors Records

Financial Auditing Services

(Executive Order #195)

The Governor of his designee, the Secretary of Administration and Finance, and the State
Auditor or his designee shall have the right al reasonable times and upon reasanable notice to
examine bools, records and other compilations of data of the contractor which pertain to the
performance and requirements of this contract.

A g } i
Signature__ i o %_Q;JZ_@M

Date__ #gaw | RY/FEN

T
[

1 1 the potley and eommitment of Glahbarg State Unbversity ool fo dlscilmrinate on he basis ol jece, vefglon, eolbr, 2ge, sexual orien lation,
s, handlean, veteran status, martal stats, or webional urigl in bts edusatlont programs, soivilies, admissiens or arpkesnent policies and L
netieely comply with the rsguirements of federa) Excoutive fders 13246 and 19374 ¢4 smented; the Lol Rights Act of 104 as amended; Ttk
1 of the Educilional Acl of £973; Seetion 503 and 504 of the AehabBltation Aot of 1973, Seclieh 402 Vistnsm Efa Yelwrsns Resdustrment Sel of
16743 and perdnent laws, Fegulations and oiecutide directives of the Iigher Education Coordinating Councd ef the Comprunwealth of
Massachusets, and other applitable stete and Fardive! siatutes,

Powered by BoardOnTrack
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Fitchburg State University

FY22 IFP#7 Financial Auditing Services

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Instructions: Please acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued with this solicitation by completing this
addendum acknowledgment form. Place a check next to your selected response and sign below. Failure
to acknowledge addenda may result in JFP disqualification.

Acknqwledgment: | hereby acknpwledge receipt of the following addenda and have made the necessary
revisions to my proposal, plans and/or specification, etc.

Addendum Numbers Received:
(Check next to each addendum received)

v/ Addendum No. 1- Acknqwledgment of Addendum

Signature: ___ Daiid A ?%% M/ﬂ/{ D

| understand that failure to confirm the receipt of addenda may be cause for rejection of this RFP. |
further understand that any verbal representation made or assumed tq be made during any oral
discussion held between Vendor's representatives and any state personnel is not binding. Only the
information issued in writing and added to the specifications by an official addendum is binding.
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Fitchburg State University

FY22 IFP#7 Financial Auditing Services

ADDENDUM ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Instructions: Please acknowledge receipt of all addenda issued with this solicitation by completing this
addendum acknowledgment form. Place a check next to your selected response and sign below. Failure
to acknowledge addenda may result in |FP disqualification.

Acknowledgment: | hereby acknowledge receipt of the following addenda and have made the necessary
revisions to my proposal, plans and/or specification, etc.

Addendum Numbers Received:

(Check next to each addendum received)
&

?/

Addendum No. 2 - Acknqwledgment of Addendum

b3 4 7o

. 4 s, o md AN Y A
Signature: }'};{ il g A le £

| understand that failure to confirm the receipt of addenda may be cause for rejection of this RFP. |
further understand that any verbal representation made or assumed to be made during any oral
discussion held between Vendor's representatives and any state personnel is not binding. Only the
information issued in writing and added to the specifications by an official addendum is binding.
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Form L=

{Rev. Oclober 2018)
Dapariment of ihe Treasuy
Internal Revenue Ssrvice

Reguest for Taxpayer
identification Number and Certification

b Go 1o www.irs.gov/FormWe for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS,

O'Connor & Drew, P.C.

§ Name (as Shown on your Income tax relurn). Name s required or this line; do nol leave This line blank.

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, If difforent from above

followlng seven boxes.

D Inoividual/sole proprietor or Oc Corporation

single-membaor LLG

[T} otner (see Instructions) ¥

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classificallan of the parson whose nama is entered on line ¢ Check only one of the
8 Corporaticn

D Umited liability company. Enter the tax olassification (C=C corporation, 8-8 corporation, P=Padnership) b
Note: Check the appropriate box in the line sbove for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check
LLG I the LLG Is classified as o single-member LLC that s disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC Is
another LLG thal is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwlse, a single-membar LLC that
is disrsgardad lrom ihe owner should check the appropriate box for the tax olassification of ils owner.

4 Exemplions {codes apply only to
cerlaln entitles, not Individuals; see
Instructions on page 3):

E] Partnership D Trust/estate

Exempt payee code (if any}

Exemplion fram FATCA reporting
code (if any)

Anplies [3 eecounts men2inud ouleds the U 8.}

5 Address (number, streal, and apl. of suite no.) Sce Instructions.

25 Braintree Hill Office Park

Requesler’s name and address (optional)

Print or type
See Specific Instructions on page 3.

6 Cily, state, and 2(P code
Braintree, MA 02184

7 List account numbers) here {opllonal)

Taxpayer ldentification Numbar (TIN)

TIN, later.

Note: If the account s in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and

Number To Give the Requester for guidslines on whose number to enter.

nter your TIN in the appropriate box, The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avold
backup withholding. For individuals, ihis is gererally your soclal sesurity number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other
entitles, it is your employer Identificalion nurnber (EIN), I you do not have & numbar, see How to got a

Soclal sosurity number

or
["Employer identification number |

o[4] -1 3[0j0j0|5]2]3

Centlfication

panalties of perjury, | cerify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number {or t am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (8) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Intemal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a resull of a fallure 1o report all interest or dividends, or {c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no fonger subjest to backup withholding; and
3.1 am a U.8. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4, The FATGA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting Is correct.
Goertification Instructions, You must cross oul itlem 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding bacause
you have failed to report all Interest and dividends on your lax return. For real estals iransactions, item 2 does not apply, For montgage interest paid,
acquisition o abandonment of sccured property, cancellation of debl, contributions to an ndividual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certifioation, but you must provide your correct TIN. Sea the Instructions for Part U, later.

s

Sign Signaturo of - "‘-ﬁfff""?‘—‘:‘ , /
Here U.8. percon ¥ s \(’—rfg/’///%? / 1/-"\_/"” Date & ‘4/ / 2 Z

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments, For the latest Information about developments
velated 1o Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legisiation enacted
after they were published, go lo www.irs.gov/FermiVo.

Purpose of Forin

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who Is requirad to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number {TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individuat taxpayor identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification nuimber
(EIN), to reporl on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information retum, Examples of information
returns include, but are not limited o, the following.

o Form 1089-INT {interest earned or paid)

¢ Form 1008-DIV (dividends, Including thoses from stocks or mutual
funds)
s Form 1098-MISC (various types of income, prizes, avwards, or gross
proceeds)
o Forrm 1099-B {stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)
s Form 1099-8 (proceeds from real estate transactions)
s Form 1059-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
° Form 1098 (hemo mortgage Interest), 1098-E {student loan interest),
1098-T {tuition)
» Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
¢« Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of sscured property)

Uss Form W-9 only If you are a U.S, person {including a resident
alien), to provids your correct TiN.

If you do not retumn Forrn W-8 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What Is backup withholding,
later.

Cal. No. 10231X

Powered by BoardOnTrack
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OARD OF

G

PUBLIG ACCOUNTANCY" - |
ISSUES THE FOLLOWING LICENSE CA i
. PROFESSIONAL CORPE) R
n ' i
| INOR & DREVIFPC 3
- 25 BRAINTREEHIEL OFC PK o
STE 102, e
BRAINTREE, MA 02184 3

| 06/30/2021
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maloney

sulopey vovetay

P . i W

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Contiol

January 26, 2021

To the Owaners
Connor & Drew. P.C.
and the Peer Review Committes of the Muassachusetts Socicly of CPA's

Woehtave reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and wuditing practice of
O Connor & Diew, PC. (e 1iom) in efteet for the vear ended June 30, 2020, Our poor
review was conducted an recordance with the Standards tor Performing and Reporting on
Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Bourd of the American Institute of Certified
Pablic Accountants (Standurds),

A summary of the nature, objectives, seope. limitations ol and the progedures performed
in a Swstemy Review as dessribed  in the Standards may  be found o
vy atens org prsnanary.  The summany also dncludes an explanation of how
engagements identiticd as not perbrmed o reported in conformity with upplicable
professional standunds, ifany, are evaluated by o peer reviewer (o deteriiing a poar review
rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The finm is responsible for desipning a svstenm of quality control and complyving with it to
provide the finm with reasonable assurance of performing and seposting in conformily with
applicable professional standardy in gl material respects. The firm is also sesponsible for
evalusting actions o prompily remediale cngagements deemed as not performed or
reporied in vonlornily with professions] standards, when appropriate, and for remediating
wenknesvos i its system of quality eontrol, i any.

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the design of the system of quality conirol
and the firm’s compliance therewith based on our review.

Reguived Seloctions and Consderatons

Engagements selected for review included engagements pesformed under Gowrmmen!
Auditing Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; audits of
employee benefit plans, and an examinaion of service organizations {(S0C 2)

Asg past of our peer review, we constdered reviews by regulatory entities ag communicated
by the firm, i€ applieable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures

Gpinion

In our epinton, the system of quality control for the azcounting and auditing prachice of
O'Connor & Drew, P.C. in effect for the yew ended June 30, 2020, has been suitably
designed and complied with $o provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
andyeperting in confenmity with applicable professional standarde in all magerial vespeocts
Firms can receive » rating of pass, pass with defcioncyfies) or ful O'Connor & Drew,
P.C hasreceived a peer review rating of pass,

Sincerely,

(“7754.&7‘% ey AL
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David joined the Firm in 1986 and became Principal in 1996. He has
experience working with government entities, higher education, and
not-for-profits. A CGFM, he also received the Governmental
Accounting and Auditing Certificate of Educational achievement for
Single Audits, has helped many organizations obtain a Certificate of
Achievement in Financial Reporting from the Government Financial
Officer’'s Association for its CAFR, and has assisted clients with GASB
implementation and reporting.

Areas of Expertise

*  Not-for-profit °  Retail

¢ Government entities »  Closely-held businesses
«  Higher education

«  Construction

CPA; MBA, CGFM «  Automobile dealerships
. ?17.471.1120 Education
ddilulis@ocd.com »  University of Massachusetts at Amherst - Bachelor of Business

Administration - High Honors
«  Suffolk University — Master’s in Business Administration - High Honors

Memberships
»  Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants (MassCPAs)
~ Fellow

»  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

¢ South Shore Chamber of Commerce

= National Association of Colleges and Universities Business Officers
(NACUBO)

« Eastern Association of Colleges and Universities Business Officers
(EACUBO)

«  Association of Government Accountants

+  Designated Government Audit Quality Center Principal (GAQC)

46
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617.471.1120
zlaflash@ocd.com

Connor
Drewrc.

Certified Public Accountants

Zach joined the firm in 2007 and was promoted to Manager in 2017
and most recently to Principal in 2022. He oversees accounting,
auditing, and tax services for a wide range of clients and variety of
engagements including; audits, reviews, compilations and agreed upon
procedures.

Areas of Expertise

+  Nonprofit

»  Governmental Entities
»  Higher education

s Commercial

«  Healthcare

Education

«  Westfield State University — Bachelor's Degree with Dual Majors
in Business Administration with a concentration in Accounting and
Economics

Memberships

»  Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants - Fellow
(MassCPAs)

o American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

47
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Mike joined the firm in 2008 and was promoted to Manager in 2017.
Mike is responsible for managing audit and tax services for a wide vari-
ety of clients including closely held businesses and their shareholders,
as well as non-profit, higher education and governmental entities.

Areas of Expertise

«  Automobile Dealerships

»  Closely Held Businesses

¢ Higher Education

¢ Governmental Entities

*  Not-For-Profit Organizations
« Real Estate Management

CPA
617.471.1120 Education
mcronin@ocd.com «  Stonehill College, Bachelor of Science in Accounting, 2008

Memberships
»  Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants (MassCPAs)
¢ American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

48
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CPA,CIA, CFE

617.4711120
fobrien@ocd.com

Since joining the Firm in 1998, Frank has worked both with closely held
businesses and non-profits. For the past seventeen years, Frank has
managed the internal audit and fraud division at the Firm.

Areas of Expertise
¢ Internal controls
¢ Fraud investigation

Education
«  Villanova University, School of Commerce and Finance - Bachelor

of Science in Accounting

Memberships

«  Massachusetts Society of Certified Public

+  Accountants (MassCPAs)

«  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

o [nstitution of Internal Auditors (lIA) Association of Certified Fraud
Examiners (ACFE)

49
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S

. Certified Public Ac

617.471.1120
cohen@ocd.com

AW %
countants

Steven Cohen joined O'Connor & Drew in 1996 and frequently
consults with numerous organizations to improve their profitability,
internal controls structure and compliance with Federal and state laws
and regulations. Steven is a certified governmental financial manager
(CGFM) and has managed government audit engagements, including
our incurred cost and overhead audits for the Massachusetts Highway
Department and Central Artery Tunnel Project (a/k/a “The Big Dig").

Areas of Expertise

< Higher education

«  Government entities

«  Automobile dealerships

»  Not-for-profit organizations
«  Closely-held businesses

Education

«  UMass Amherst — Bachelor of Business Administration with a
concentration in Accounting

o+ Bentley University — Master of Science in Corporate Finance

Memberships

»  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

o« Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants (MassCPAs)

»  National Association of College & University Business Officers
(NACUBO)

»  Eastern Association of College & University Business Officers
(EACUBO)

50
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CPA, MST

617.471.1120
lcarnes@ocd.com

Iewr.c

4 #u
Certified Public Accountants

Lauren joined the Firm in 1988 and became a principal in 1997. She has
extensive experience with corporate and individual tax planning,
financial planning and in representation with government agencies.
She currently directs our tax department overseeing services in most
areas including corporate and individual taxation.

Areas of Expertise

«  501(c)(3) organizations, foundations

¢ Representation before the IRS and MA. DOR

> Personal & corporation taxation

¢ Fuel oil dealers

¢ Multi-state taxation

¢ Retail industry

> Business succession planning

»  Business consultations on mergers, acquisitions, and sales

Education

+  University of New Hampshire, School of Management — Bachelor
of Arts in Economics

»  Bentley College — Master of Science in Taxation

Memberships

«  Massachusetts Society of Certified Public Accountants (MassCPAs)
»  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

«  Caring for our Community

o Treasurer, Hatch Pond Committee

51
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Michael is the Principal of IT Audit & Security at O'Connor & Drew, P.C.
With over 20 years in various strategic and administrative IT positions,
including 15 years designing and implementing security architecture
and security controls, Michael is widely considered a foremost expert
in IT security. Michaelis as a frequent speaker on trending audit and
security topics

Areas of Expertise

» IT General controls (ITGC)

« 15O 27001/27002, COBIT

o SOXtesting

o Server, desktop, storage, and networking technologies

CISA, CRISC, CISSP

Education

«  University of Massachusetts Boston, Magna Cum Laude, Bachelor
of Arts in Community Studies

University of Maryland, Associates of Arts in Computer Science

o College of the Air Force, Associates of Science, Paralegal

617.471.1120
mhammond@ocd.com

Memberships

o+ Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA), ISACA

o Certified in Risk and Information Systems Control (CRISC), ISACA

o Certified Information Systems Security Professional, (CISSP), ISC2

«  Prior certifications include Microsoft, Novell, CompTIA, and ITIL

«  Member, InfraGard, a partnership between the private sector and
FBI
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A Move Towards Remote Auditing

The coronavirus pandemic has
put unprecedented pressure on
the global economy and financial
markets in recent months and
caused many changes. Two
things that have not changed
are your requirements to your
employee benefit plan and our
commitment to providing you with
a quality audit. With uncertainty
regarding the timing of stay-at-
home orders and other safety
protocols that will be in place
over the next several months,
we cannot be sure when we will
be able to visit client locations
to complete our audits and as a
result, we have turned to remote
auditing,
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Now, mare than ever, is a time fo
refine our audit processes, make
the best use of technology,
and develop best praciices for
completing these audits and
staying connected with you, our
clients. To do so, we will need to
combine the use of technology
with effective audit planning and
communication. This will ensure
we are completing your employee
benefit plan audit as efficiently
and effectively as possible over
the next several months and
beyond.

Remote Audit Technology
Accounting firms have been
doing remote audits for some
time now and many already have
53
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A Move Towards Remote Auditing

the fechnology necessary
for remote auditing, although
maybe not to the extent that
it will be used now. While
some technology supporting
remote audits is quite basic
and well known (email and
software such as Word, Excel
and Acrobat), below are a few
of the unique challenges that
might arise when completing
an employee benefit plan audit
remotely, and the technology
we are using to help overcome
those challenges that may be
new to engagements,

Email can be viewed as an
unsafe way to share sensitive
information, such as payroll
data and employee information
that we often require

during employee benefit plan
audits. As a result of these
security concerns, we have
been utilizing a secure web
portal to ensure our clients
have access to a centralized
client folder to easily upload
and transfer their audit requests
and support. This also allows
for 2 more efficient audit, as
the support is accumulated in
a central location that can be
accessed by specific client
personnel and members of the
engagement team throughout
the audit.

Also, due to the limitations
created from not being
onsite to have face-to-
face conversations and ask
guestions that are required
during the audit, we are
utilizing various video and
teleconferencing software
to help stay connected with
our clients and colleagues
throughout the process.

a simple phone
conversation, these tools
can allow for face-to-face
conversations, the ability to
share screens and information,
and even observe specific
audit support.

Beyond

Audit Planning and
Communication

Performing a  successful
remote employee benefit
plan audit also involves a
strong focus on planning and
communication. Effective
planning and communication
have always been key aspects
of an audit engagement, but
when an auditor is unable to
visit a client location to perform
testing, it becomes even more
important.

To ensure proper planning
and communication for remote
employee benefit plan audits,
we are making our request
for data and testing samples
as detailed and complete as
possible, tailoring these fo
each specific engagement,
and communicating our
requests as early as possible.
These requests will also be
discussed with you upfront so
there is a clear understanding
of what we are asking for and
how we would like to receive
the information throughout the

Powered by BoardOnTrack

process.

In addition, since we are unable
to just walk into your office to
ask guestions during a remote
audit as we typically would
during standard fieldwork, it
is helpful to have additional
check-in calls throughout
the engagement to resolve
issues, discuss gquestions and
open items that we may have
accumulated while performing
our testing remotely, as well as
to keep you up to date on our
progress.

Creating a Better Process
While we understand that
completing these employee
benefit plan audits remotely
might be challenging,
especially in the near term,
many of the processes and best
practices that we are putting
into place now will likely remain
even after the pandemic has
subsided. With the proper use
of remote auditing technology
and effective planning and
communication throughout
our engagements, we will be
able to help you meet your
employee benefit plan audit
requirements as efficiently,
effectively, and safely as
possible.
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